# **Housing & Homelessness Advisory Committee**

Meeting held June 21, 2022

A meeting of the Housing and Homelessness Advisory Committee is held this day commencing at 10:00 o'clock a.m. via Zoom video conference, there being present the following members:

Marina Clemens, Chair Councillor Kieran McKenzie Anna Angelidis Jessica Brunet Fiona Coughlin Kathy Hay Warden Gary McNamara, County of Essex Leigh Vachon (arrives at 10:12 a.m.) Joyce Zuk

#### Regrets received from:

Eric Hill Angela Yakonich

#### Guests in attendance:

Sydney Coyle, Trans Wellness Ontario regarding *Item 4.2* Hope Lovell

#### Also present are the following resource personnel:

Thom Hunt, City Planner Michael Cooke, Manager Planning Policy, Deputy City Planner Laura Strahl, Planner III Frank Garardo, Planner III Jeannie Diamond Francis, County of Essex Gayle Jones, Diversity/Accessibility Officer Jennifer Tanner, Manager, Homelessness & Housing Support Kelly Goz, Coordinator, Housing Administration & Development Tina Moore, Coordinator, Housing Administration & Development Karen Kadour, Committee Coordinator

## 1. Call to Order

The Chair calls the meeting to order at 10:03 o'clock a.m. and the Committee considers the Agenda being Schedule A attached hereto, matters which are dealt with as follows:

#### 2. Disclosure of Interest

None disclosed.

# 3. Adoption of the Minutes

Moved by F. Coughlin, seconded by J. Brunet,

That the minutes of the Housing and Homelessness Advisory Committee of its meeting held March 22, 2022 **BE ADOPTED** as presented.

Carried.

## 4. Presentations

# 4.1 Working Together to Address Ontario's Current Housing Crisis

Thom Hunt, City Planner provides the following highlights of the Presentation entitled "Working Together to Address Ontario's Current Housing Crisis":

- Refers to the letter he wrote as the Chair of the Regional Planning Commissioners of Ontario regarding the current housing crisis.
- Lobbied the Provincial Government on their Housing Affordability Task Force Report which is the subject of that letter as they were aware of a round of legislated policy changes that the government was considering.
- The Provincial Government produced Bill 109 which was titled "The More Homes for Everyone Act" and many of the legislated amendments directly impact municipal planning approval processes in towns and cities in general.
- One of the narratives was that the housing crisis is caused generally by a lack of supply of housing units regardless of the kind of housing units. If there were faster Planning Act approvals and timelines, there would be more supply and the affordability issue crisis itself would get solved by having more supply.
- What causes concern on Bill 109 is that there is going to be a cumulative effect on the municipalities in terms of the timelines and requirements to make decisions on by-law amendments, Official Plan Amendments and site plans. There is going to be a refund mechanism so if decisions are not made within the prescribed timelines, the municipality will be compelled to refund the applications that exceed the number of days it should take.

- Having to refund the application will have a huge effect on the municipality's ability to have staff work on a number of these applications quickly. In 2021, the City of Windsor had a record number of development applications with the same staffing levels.
- Will have to double their staff in order to meet these prescribed timelines given the volume of applications that they are currently seeing.
- Unfortunately, these costs will be borne by the taxpayer when these refunds are made.
- If this is the case, development will not pay for development.
- In terms of Bill 109, municipalities will no longer be in the public engagement consensus building on applications so the municipality will have to frontload some of the dialogue that takes place before they deem an application complete which is a paramount shift in the way that planning is undertaken in our towns and cities.
- The changes in Bill 109 do not come into effect until the new year so there is an opportunity to lobby the provincial government.
- He will present at the conference in Ottawa to the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO).
- The take-away for HHAC is that the Housing Affordability Task Force was perhaps authored by builders and those financiers that are involved in housing in general. It did not go deep enough into the changes to prescribe any meaningful change on affordability.
- This current Bill is going to increase development costs and increase timelines because of the way this has been set-up.

Warden McNamara states that the developers have the ear on the Ministers that saying that it is the municipalities that are creating the bureaucracy in delaying any kind of a development which should not be on the backs of municipalities.

Councillor McKenzie states that he disagrees with Bill 109 and asks what HHAC can do. He assumes that there will be opportunities for some commentary on the regulations as they are developed and asks if HHAC can send something forward to City Council and County Council as there may be more coming to deregulate the housing sector.

T. Hunt responds that other municipalities provided extensive comments only to find out the government pulled the prescribed consultation timeline and the *Act* received Royal Assent before consultations closed. Municipalities have been asked to do resolutions by their Council to say there needs to be action by the provincial government. At the end of the day, it is a huge financial hit to the cities which will be on the backs of the taxpayers which is not the way that development should occur.

Councillor McKenzie refers to the remarks made by T. Hunt relating to impacts, specifically doubling staff resources, and increasing the cost of development, and asks if the fees for the permits will also be increased.

T. Hunt responds that increasing the fees is not viable as it will penalize the people who will receive the refund because they are the ones who will be paying. He adds that if there is a deficit of one to two million dollars in fees, and double the staff resources, we will have to refund two million dollars. So there will be a shortfall of one million dollars that the general taxpayer will pick up.

Councillor McKenzie asks if this could incentivize developers to delay the projects themselves to hit that fifty percent rebate mark.

T. Hunt responds that it would be the one hundred percent mark as some of the developers do not want to go to market immediately, they just want the approval. If an application is refunded, they are still compelled to work on it.

F. Coughlin states that the Housing Affordability Task Force was specifically told that it was not about affordable housing, they could not talk about surplus government land, the regulation of rental houses; they could only talk about supply side measures.

A. Angelidis notes that this is disheartening as so much advocacy work has been done in this sector to lobby the government regarding permits and fees and to encourage affordable housing. She indicates that all of this work has gone in the opposite direction with the focus on the builders.

J. Zuk leaves the meeting at 10:37 o'clock a.m.

Laura Strahl, Planner III Special Projects provides a Presentation entitled "Multi-Residential Interim Control Bylaw" and the following highlights are provided:

- The City of Windsor passed Interim Control By-law 103-2020 on July 13, 2020
- Prohibits the use on all lands, buildings, and structures for a Group Home, Shelter, Lodging House, and a Dwelling with five or more dwelling units
- Retained Project Team in September 2021 to complete MRICBL Study, OPA and Zoning By-law Amendment
- Must be completed by July 13, 2022
- Background Studies now completed
- The City needs more housing in the inner areas of the City, with populations in a majority of the City declining due to a lack of new housing options and shrinking average household sizes;
- The City is not seeing enough purpose-built rental housing constructed to meet demand;
- Access to retail, transit and other community amenities can bolster the market for new residential development, making an area attractive to prospective new households;
- Similarly, adding residential uses near existing retail clusters can improve the viability of those retail environments. The practice of redeveloping major retail centres for a mix of uses including residential, as well as other community

amenities such as parks, community centres, and even additional retail is growing across Ontario and Canada;

City of Windsor Official Plan

Development Strategy

- Regional Commercial Centres will eventually become vibrant commercial/residential areas
- Nodes will exhibit a wide variety of land uses, including higher density residential and employment uses, and have access to frequent public transit service. Corridors will be mixed commercial, residential and employment uses with higher density

# Policy Changes – Official Plan

# Low Profile Residential Areas – Stable Neighbourhoods

- Policies to protect character through limits of gross floor area and height
- Zoning By-law revised to include maximum height (9.0 m) and maximum gross floor area (400 sq m)
- Require site plan control for 5 or more units in a development.
- Require design brief as part of application process to define character and demonstrate **compatibility**
- Design Guidelines will provide additional development details/examples
  Policy Changes Official Plan
  Mature Neighbourhoods
- In addition to policies and zoning for Low Profile Neighbourhoods:
  - Design brief to describe historic and current architectural style, materials and site characteristics.
  - Site Plan control to apply to all development and redevelopment in excess of 50 per cent increase in coverage or gross floor area.
  - Development or redevelopment to be **consistent** with historic neighbourhood character

Moved by F. Coughlin, seconded by J. Brunet,

That the update by the City Planner regarding Ontario's housing crisis and Bill 109 and the update by the Planner III, Special Projects regarding the Multi-Residential Interim Control By-law **BE RECEIVED**.

Carried.

# 4.2 Trans Wellness Ontario

# Item 4.2 Trans Wellness Ontario

Sydney Coyle, Education Lead, Trans Wellness Ontario appears before the Committee and provides the following overview of the LGBTQ2S Youth Homelessness in Canada:

- 150,000 young people experiencing homelessness in Canada
- 25-40% of homeless youth in Canada identify as LGBTQ2S

- 35,000 homeless youth in Toronto (6,000/night)
- 21% of youth in Toronto shelters identify as LGBTQ2S
- 9 youth emergency shelters equals 350 beds
- 4 transitional housing programs equals 110 beds
- LGBTQ2S youth have difficulty finding shelters where they feel safe and respected; they experience high rates of discrimination and violence in shelters.
- LGBTQ2S-specific housing options are an essential component in addressing youth homelessness and meeting the needs of LGBTQ2S youth.
- LGBTQ2S youth are overrepresented in the homeless youth population, but underrepresented in shelters and face more discrimination than any other youth group.
- Some youth feel safer on the street than in the shelters as they have to deal with homophobia, biphobia and transphobia.

S. Coyle states that a lack of proper training for shelter staff results in a lack of knowledge and ignorance towards queer and trans people. Ney advises that Trans Wellness is a non-profit organization funded through grants and community donations. Ney adds that Trans Wellness Ontario wants to support those agencies that are helping people experiencing homelessness, in order to develop programming and to best support their trans clients.

S. Coyle recommends that the City of Windsor provide funding for the five major organizations in the Windsor Essex community to receive diversity training. As the Education Lead, ney has developed a specialized training for different sectors including health care education, and one that is specifically entitled "Poverty, homelessness and Rejection". We talk about challenges that queer and trans persons experience in the shelter system and how to be ally service providers. They are requesting funding to train the staff who are working at the five main organizations – Downtown Mission, the Welcome Centre, Hiatus House, Salvation Army and Housing Information Services as a start and once this is successful, they would like to provide this training to all agencies addressing housing and homelessness within the community. Additionally they are requesting funding to do consultation services – to review an organization's physical spaces, policies and procedures. Ney adds that the City of Toronto has made it mandatory for all shelter staff to receive LGBTQ cultural competency training and asks that the City of Windsor make it mandatory for shelter staff to receive diversity training.

In response to a question asked by the Chair regarding if Trans Wellness Ontario has data relating to people seeking permanent housing in the non-profit or private market, S. Coyle responds that many people experienced the same barriers, i.e. clients did not feel safe, transphobia issues and random employment due to not enough income to sustain housing.

Councillor McKenzie concurs that there is a lack of available housing for all folks across the community and it is important to understand that there is a need to provide better services. He asks the presenter how many folks they serve in the community.

S. Coyle responds that in 2021, Trans Wellness Ontario conducted over 1,500 counselling appointments, 245 food banks and 128 intakes. They worked with clients to find housing supports.

In response to a question asked by Councillor McKenzie regarding the people they serve and the services provided, would housing be something they would try to address, S. Coyle responds that housing assistance was provided to thirty individuals.

Councillor McKenzie requests that Gayle Jones, Diversity/Accessibility Officer, City of Windsor provide remarks relating to the presentation by S. Coyle.

G. Jones responds that the presentation is consistent with the research regarding the challenges, the barriers and discrimination that is faced by the queer and trans community. She adds that it is difficult for people to relate to something that they have not experienced and we are fortunate to have the Trans Wellness organization that has that expertise. In terms of the best format for training moving forward, she asks if this process has been used in other municipalities, i.e. the municipality funds the training for shelters.

S. Coyle responds that ney is not certain if other municipalities have made the training mandatory, but is aware that the City of Toronto has done so.

J. Tanner advises that the city has direct funding and has a contractual relationship with four of the five organizations listed, and states the city administrative staff would be happy to work with Trans Wellness and help facilitate training opportunities within the shelter system. We want to see the shelters migrate towards best practices; to operate more as a system and adds that the community had undertaken an Review of Emergency Shelter Services in Windsor and Essex County and there were some specific recommendations in that review to allow for safe shelter spaces for the trans community.

K. Goz states that the shelter system has a significant turnover of staff so if Trans Wellness is able to do training modules that could be prerecorded, and can be embedded in those organizations in training packages, that would be ideal.

S. Coyle responds they are currently in a partnership with the Windsor Essex Children's Aid Society to develop modules

The Chair asks if Trans Wellness is involved with the County.

S. Coyle responds that homelessness in the County looks very different from the City as there are no services out in the County. We know that discrimination against the

queer and trans community is much higher in the County. Many queer and trans youth remain closeted and are not able to come out due to safety concerns.

J. Diamond Francis advises that on June 1, 2022, that County Council approved funding for a homelessness hub in Learnington. It is important that the staff receive the appropriate training in order to deliver the service and it is hoped to have a service provider in the fall 2022. She adds that County Council will fund this initiative for two years.

Moved by Councillor K. McKenzie, seconded J. Brunet,

**WHEREAS,** members of the 2SLGBTQIA+ community face barriers to finding appropriate housing and housing services in Windsor/Essex in disproportionate numbers and;

**WHEREAS** the barriers faced are multi-faceted and complex including institution al, administrative as well as discriminatory,

**THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED** that the Housing and Homelessness Advisory Committee recommends that the City of Windsor Administration consult with community partners in Housing, Social Services and appropriate community advocacy groups including Trans Wellness Ontario and others to bring forward recommendations for both Windsor City Council and County of Essex Council consideration to address the housing challenges faced specifically by the 2SLGBTQIA+ community.

Carried.

#### 5. Business Items

#### 5.1 Updates by Administration

#### Goal 1: Sustain & expand social housing & affordable housing supply \

# 2022 Canada Ontario Housing Benefit (COHB) Applications for Windsor Essex

T. Moore provides the following overview:

The Canada-Ontario Housing Benefit (COHB) is a federal-provincial housing allowance program providing an income-tested, portable housing benefit (PHB) payment to low-income households. The COHB is designed to help increase affordability of rental housing for eligible households that are on social housing waiting lists. Approved applicants under this program must consent to being removed from the social housing wait list. The City of Windsor estimates the 2022-23 COHB allocation has the potential to assist approximately 250 to 260 households.

The Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing (MMAH) released the 2022-23 COHB application on May 4, 2022 which was later than anticipated, and will assist with housing costs on or after May 1, 2022 not April 1, 2022 as previously reported. Within days of the release COHB staff began working to process COHB applications for residents of Windsor and Essex County.

## 2022 Ontario Renovates – Social Housing Repair Program (OR-SHRP)

T. Moore provides the following information:

Applications for the 2022 Ontario Renovates Social Housing Repair Program (ORSHRP) have been distributed to Social Housing Providers in Windsor and Essex County.

- The City of Windsor engaged an external consultant to conduct operational reviews and building condition assessments (BCA's) for the social housing providers.
- Applications received for the upcoming 2022-23 OR-SHRP Program, will be evaluated in conjunction with the Building Capacity Assessments (BCA's) completed by Pretium. The BCA reports have been shared with all of the Social Housing Providers in an effort to assist them in identifying and prioritizing the repairs required. Items identified within the BCA, will take priority when applications are considered and are subject to Service Manager discretion and available funding.
- Applications with the accompanying quotes are due to our office on or before July 15, 2022.
- This initiative aligns with our Housing and Homelessness Plan (HHP) Goal 1: Sustain and Expand Social and Affordable Housing Supply; Strategy 1.6 (Page 17) which refers to conducting a review of the current social housing stock to determine the current and future state of repair and leverage government funding to support capital repair, replacement and upgrading of major building components for social housing as well as the City of Windsor HHP target to repair, on an annual basis, an average of 30% of social housing stock. (Page 14)

#### **Current & Future Capital Funding Streams**

J. Tanner provides the following highlights:

The province has released another round of **Social Services Relief Funding (SSRF, Phase 5)**, and provided the Service Manager with a total allocation of \$3.4 million. City Administration has submitted an investment plan to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs & Housing and is awaiting approval of its plan to utilize \$1.37 million for operating costs, including the continuation of the COVID Isolation & Recovery Centre for people experiencing homelessness, and \$1.92 million in capital funding to create new affordable housing in Windsor and Essex County. Any announcements about these projects will come directly from the provincial government.

The Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC) is the lead in delivering National Housing Strategy Initiatives over the next 10 years by offering funding opportunities for new construction and repair/renewal to local private and non-profit organizations with the purpose of increasing the housing stock, or sustaining the existing affordable housing supply. An announcement for Round 3 of the **Rapid Housing Initiatives (RHI)** is imminent and will be reported as program details are available.

On September 21, 2020, the Government of Canada announced round 1 of the Rapid Housing Initiative (RHI), a \$1 billion program to help address urgent housing needs through the rapid construction of affordable housing. In June 2021, CMHC announced the creation of 4,500 new affordable housing units across the country with an additional investment of \$1.5 billion through a Round 2 of the Rapid Housing Initiative (RHI). These housing units will support Canadians who are in uncertain housing situations, experiencing or at risk of homelessness, or living in temporary shelters because of the pandemic.

As part of round 2 RHI, the City of Windsor as Consolidated Municipal Service Manager for Windsor and Essex County received a priority allocation of \$9,337,117 in Round 2 to create a minimum of 35 units of new permanent affordable housing as part of the Cities Stream. The City submitted an application for 3 projects, 2 in the City and 1 in the County and all 3 projects were approved by CMHC in October 2021 with projects currently underway anticipated to be complete by the end of 2022.

#### Goal 2: Sustain and expand housing that is linked with supports.

#### **New Supportive Housing**

COVID-related capital funding from upper levels of government was utilized to provide funding to Assisted Living South West Ontario (ALSO) to purchase and renovate a building to create 29 new supportive housing units. This facility will begin intakes in July.

# Goal 3: Ending Homelessness

Windsor Essex By-Names Prioritized List data for May 2022.

K. Goz provides the following as it relates to the By-Names prioritized list.

<u>Monthly homelessness data</u> Chronic			Out	flow	Inflow				Balance Check		
	Month	Actively Homeless	Move-Ins	Moved to Inactive	Newly Identified	Aged-In	Returned from Inactive	Returned from Housing	Net Monthly Change	Balance Check	
Past month for balance check static values	Apr-22	347	28	23	12	6	14	7	-12		
Current month dynamic formulas	May-22	360	30	24	22	5	10	30	13	Yes	
				-							
Monthly homelessness data			Outflow		Inflow				Balance Check		
Veteran	Month	Actively Homeless	Move-Ins	Moved to Inactive	Newly Identified	Aged-In	Returned from Inactive	Returned from Housing	Net Monthly Change	Balance Check	
Past month for balance check static values	Apr-22	1	0	0	0		0	0	0		
Current month dynamic formulas	May-22	2	0	0	0		0	1	1	Yes	
Monthly homelessness data			Outflow		Inflow				Balance Check		
All Populations	Month	Actively Homeless	Move-Ins	Moved to Inactive	Newly Identified	Aged-In	Returned from Inactive	Returned from Housing	Net Monthly Change	Balance Check	
Past month for balance check static values	Apr-22	439	54	34	32		16	12	-28		
Current month dynamic formulas	May-22	463	36	37	50		12	35	24	Yes	

## Housing Hub Consultation

K. Goz provides the following information relating to the Housing Hub.

In July 2021, City Council approved a report (C 98/2021) in which Administration presented a Housing Hub Vision, that aims to build on the success of the Homelessness & Housing Help Hub (H4) and create a permanent space where people at risk of homelessness or experiencing homelessness can go for housing help and a variety of other services such a health, mental health and addictions supports. The hub vision also includes onsite permanent affordable housing and a flexible space that can be used in response to civic emergencies.

City Administration engaged with Glos Arch + Eng to conduct community consultations with key stakeholders, elected officials and service users which was completed in late 2021. Glos has also identified what physical space would be required for the Housing Hub and preliminary construction / renovation cost estimates. The final report will be presented to City Council this summer, and a copy will be provided to HHAC and the County.

#### New Emergency Shelter for Women & Families

As previously reported to HHAC, COVID-related capital funding from the provincial and federal levels of government was allocated to the purchase of a hotel and renovations to convert it to an emergency shelter. The renovations are now complete and the Welcome Centre staff are onsite getting things set up to begin welcoming women and families at the end of June. This facility will be the first family shelter in the community,

offering up to 20 rooms for families, and the capacity to accommodate up to 32 single women. It will also be the first pet friendly shelter in Windsor-Essex when the Welcome Centre begins its pet intake process later this summer.

# 5.2 Updates from Member Organizations

None.

# 6. Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting will be held in September 2022 (date to be determined).

# 7. Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting is adjourned at 12:05 p.m.

CHAIR

COMMITTEE COORDINATOR